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The site consists of twe dwellings, one of which is In a roughly central location and which is located close to a
collection of farm hbuildings and associated structures (above ground storage tanks, sheds, disused stock effluent
ponds). The other dwelling is located close 1o Springs Road. In recent years a cell phone antenna and associated
equipment has been installed at the northem end of the site. The remainder of the site is largely paddocks, Further
details relating to the site layout are provided in section 4.8,

3.2 Geology and Hydrogeology

The Christchurch Area geological map (GNS, 2008, 1:250,000 scale) indicates that the underying sirata consists of
quaternary grey river alluvium beneath plains or low-level terraces.

No bere logs are available on Enwironment Canterbury's (ECan’s) GIS database for any of the wells located on the site
(refer below for further details on the on-site wells). However, the log for well M36/0433 (56 m deep), located
approximately 500 m south of the site is available. This log records gravels and sands to 10.3 m below ground level
(bgl) underain by lower permeability clay to 17.7 m bgl. Beneath this layer, gravel and sand extends to 38.4 m bgl,
underiain by clay and gravel fo 51.9 m bgl. This |s underlain by gravel and sand to the maximum depth drilled of 56 m
hgl.

The log for well M36/4976 {15.6 m deep), located approximately 500 m west of the site boundary records clay baund
gravels from surface to 3.09 m bgl underlain by grave| to 8.39 m. This is undedain by sandy gravel to 12.6 m bgl,
underizin by gravel with some sand to 15.6 m bgl.

According to the ECan GIS database, the site is mainly underlain by Wakanui deep silt loam with two fingers of
Templeton deep and moderately deep silt loam on sandy loam and Templeton moderately deep silt loam and Erye
shallow silt loam passing through the eastern half of the property.

The ECan information suggests that the site is in an area of transitional geology. The inferred boundary between
unconfined or semi confined aquifers and the coastal confined aquifers is indicated by ECan to be approximately

500 m to the east of the site (see Figure 4). Based on the ECan information the site is located over unconfined or
semi-confined aquifers. Furthermore, ECan’s GIS database identifies the presence of numerous springs approximately
450 m east of the site boundary and beyond, signifying shallow groundwater reaching the surface through gaps in
lower pameability soils.

Numerous drains have been constructed in the vicinity of the site to manage surface water drainage, with one of these
running east-west across Lot 1 DP 12928, and another, believed to be a historical intermittent natural watercourse
that was formalised over 100 years ago, running along the western boundary of the site. Springs Creek is the closest
natural waterway, being located approximately 800 m east of the site boundary.

Inspection of ECan's GIS database indicated that thirty nine wells are located within a 500 m radius of the site. Five of
these are indicated as being located within the property boundaries (M36/1414, M36/1415, M36/1416, M36/1417,
and M36/3532), although two of these are indicated as not used (M36/1416 and M236/1417). In iotal, thirty one of
the thirty nine wells are indicated to be 'active exists’, seven are indicated as ‘not used’, and one is indicated to be
‘sealed/grouted up’. Of the thirly one ‘active exists' wells, the recorded primary uses are: one for dairy use, five for
domestic and stockwater (including on-site M36/1415), four for domestic supply, four for groundwater quality, one for
industrial, five for irrigation, two for stock supply {including on-site M36/3532), seven wells for water level obsenation.
Two wells have no recorded use {including on-site M36/1444). The locations of the wells are shown in Figure 5, and a
table of information regarding the wells is appended as Table 1.

Bore leg Infermation indicates that caleulated minimum groundwater levels range on site from 2.2 m — 3.1 m below
the measuring point {presumed 1o be at, or close to ground level) based on groundwater data from wells M36/3532,
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area of activity can be seen to the east of the site (see Figure B). The 2009 photograph shows very little change since
the 1995 photograph, and a cell phone tower can be seen in the north eastern corner of the site,

Lot4 DP 12028

The 1942-43 photograph shows the land parcel to be comprised of a number of paddocks. When magnified, a
collection of approximately four small buildings can be seen, located at the eastemn edge of the land parcel.

The 1975 photograph is similar, althcugh the four small buildings appear to have been replaced by one larger building.
The 1995 photograph [s simllar, with an additional building visible {NB, has the potential to be a parked vehicle) near
the westem edge of the land parcel, The 2009 photograph is also similar.

In summary, the historical aerial photographs confirm the previous use of the site in 1942-43, 1975 and 1995 as
agriculiural. No structures other than what would be expected on an agricultural property were identified from
Inspection of the aerial photographs.

4.3 Historical Certificates of Titla

Historical Certificates of Title have been obtained and inspected to provide information about ownership of the site.
These detalls can provide information on the historic use of the site.

Lot I DP 12928

Ownership From To
Cecil Alexander Russell Woods (farmer) 1946 1949
Cecil Andrew Russell Woods 1949 1961
Dennis Andrew Russell Woods {farmer) 19861 1987
Dennis Andrew Russell Woods, Daphne Elizabeth Woods 1987 2001
Dennis Andrew Russell Wooeds, Daphne Elizabath Woods, Stewart Alan Stanley and 2001 2003

James Hurren Martin Dawson

Denwoods Trustee Limited 2003 Present
Lot 4 DP 12528

Ouwnership From To
Andrew Russell Woods (farmer) 1952 1952
Dennis Andrew Russell Woods 1952 1961
Cecil Andrew Russell Woods (farmer) 1961 1983
Dennis Andrew Russell Woods and James Hurren Martin Dawson (Solicitor) 1882 1986
Clivie Woods and Dennis Andrew Russell Woods 1986 2000
Dennis Andrew Russell Woods, Daphne Elizabeth Woods 2000 2003
Denwoods Trustee Limited 2003 Present
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4.8.5 Hazardous Substance Storage Tanks and Containers

Three above ground storage tanks were observed on Lot 1 DP 12928 in the area containing farm buildings and the
dwelling. These were indicated by Mr Woods as having a storage capacity of 2,000 litres each. They were all used for
the storage of diesel. The ground beneath the bowser of each tank was observed for diesel staining, and minimal
staining was ohsenved. Photographs of the tanks and surrounds are appended (Photographs 1 - 8), Mr Woads
indicated that there is also a 2,000 litre disused underground storage tank still present on the site that was
historically used to store petrol. The location of this tank, and the pillar to which the bowser was attached was
identified by Mr Waods and is indicated on Figure 10 (attached). Thera was no visible evidence of the tank, including
no evidence of the fill point.

An open plastic container located in a bam (see Figure 10, appended) was being used for storage of waste cil.
Staining around the edges of the container was evident (see Photograph 10, appended),

An histaric, rusty, tank was noted to the west of the buildings on Lot 1 DP12928 (see Figure 10 and Photographs 15
and 16, appended). The location of this tank when it was in use, and the liquid stored within it are unknown,

Oils and lubricants were stored in a nearby shed as shown in Figure 10 and Photograph 23 and 24 (appended).

4886 Agrichem|ical Storage and Use

Agrichemical storage was primarily in three purpose built sheds located at the southem end af the group of buildings
on Lot 1 DP 12928 as shown in Photographs 11 — 14 (appended). Google Earth images indicate that these sheds
were installed at some stage between 27 February 2008 and 13 July 2009. Provision has been made for the
collection of empty agrichemical containers in the bin shown in Photograph 11 and, presumably, they are disposed of
off-site (atthough this may not always have been the case). An agrichemical preparation area was located next to the
sheds and has a water supply associated with It. Fertiliser storage was obsenved to be at a different location - within a
bam close to the dwelling (see Photographs 17 and 18, appended).

The 27 February 2008 image (appended as Figure 11) shows a white structure in the location indicated by Mr Woods
as being a shed where hazardous substances were historically stored {(at the boundary between Lot 1 DP 12928 and
Lot 4 DP 12928}, Howaver, this structure is not present in the previous image (14 April 2004), or in any of the other
historic photographs obtained from ECan's collection, suggesting that this storage location was short-lived, The
structure was not present at the time of the site walkover (9 December 2010} (Photographs 25 and 26, appended).

Following the site visit, Mr Woods was contacted for further information on agrichemical storage, and he confirmed
that the historic storage location was short-lved because of changes to hazardous substance storage regulations.
Prior to this (shori-lived) historic storage location being used, Mr Woods indicated that agrichemicals were not stored
on site, Instaad they were purchased as required, and were prepared using water from a water tower, located next to
the historic storage shed.

It is understood that no DDT was ever used on the land.

4.8.7 Groundwater Abstraction

Mr Woods indicated that there are two functional wells on site, and these were both cited on the site walkover.
Historieally it is understood from Mr Woods that the pumps associated with water abstraction from these wells were
operated using diesel and diesel storage may, therefore, have existed close to these pumps in the past. They are now
electric. ECan's GIS database indicates that there are five bores on the site, two of which are not used. The third
active well was not located.
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